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M E M O R A N D U M  

DATE: January 5, 2007 

TO: City Council Members 

FROM: Gary Mumford 

RE: Engineering Division Audit Response 

 
 
In May 2006, the City Council received the written report from Citygate Associates on a 
management and performance audit of the City’s Engineering Division.  In a verbal 
presentation, the auditors stated that in their professional judgment, the City’s 
Engineering Division is more sophisticated, has better internal coordination, gives more 
attention to meeting schedules, and is more cost effective in its work than most similar 
operations they have reviewed or with which they are closely familiar.  Although the 
report was overall very positive, the auditors did provide a short list of opportunities for 
improvement in anticipation of needs of the future.  The Division is already addressing 
many of the recommendations and provided a response to each audit recommendation.  
 
Summary:  There were a total of 30 recommendations.    

a. The Division completely agrees with 22 of the recommendations and has 
taken action or is in the process of taking action.  Some aspects require 
funding.  The Division may be able to absorb some of the costs in its current 
budget; other costs may be phased in or included in future annual budget 
requests.   

b. The Division disagreed with 4 of the recommendations because of a shift in 
current policy.  See below. 

c. The Division somewhat agrees with 4 of the recommendations and is in the 
process of taking action.  See list below. 

 

Audit recommendations to which the Engineering Division disagreed: 
The Council may wish to discuss these recommendations with the Administration as to 
whether there should be a shift in policy.  (Note: The responses below are abridged.  For 
a complete response, see the attached transmittal from the Engineering Division.) 
 
Recommendation VII-1 (Cost Allocation):  If the City is interested in full cost 
accounting of construction projects, consider adding overhead costs from other 
department (accounting, payroll, human resource management, attorney, mayor, 
council, etc.) to the engineering costs that are charged to CIP projects.  

Division response:  Any additional costs charged to projects will reduce the actual 
dollars available for construction unless the CIP allocation from the general fund is 
increased.  
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Recommendation X-1 (Geographic Information System):  Hire a consulting firm very 
familiar with all aspects of GIS to provide the City with an evaluation of the capabilities 
of the current system, the limitations, and evaluate the short and long-term 
capability/value of alternatives to the present system, along with a range of cost for any 
alternatives. 

Division response:  The use of a consultant at this time does not appear to be 
warranted since problem areas have been identified and improvements are 
underway.  

Note:  The Council may wish to request that the information that has been identified 
by the Engineering Division be included in a comprehensive GIS report that is 
tentatively scheduled for the Council in February or March.  Currently the Council 
does not have information on projected costs for addressing all of the City’s GIS 
needs.  Council staff believes that full benefit from GIS will take a significant 
additional financial investment.   

Recommendation XII-1 (Permit Process & Enforcement):  Hire a consultant to evaluate 
the overall City data management system and recommend changes that will provide 
sufficient flexibility and real time data over the next decade. 

Division response:  In cooperation with IMS, the Engineering Division is presently 
evaluating processes, making changes, and implementing new GIS software to 
achieve real time maps and data.  The use of an outside consultant does not appear 
to be warranted at this time since the data management concerns expressed in the 
report are being addressed.  

Recommendation XII-2 (Permit Process & Enforcement):  Performance goals should be 
established with regards to the time it takes to issue a permit and respond to a request 
for inspection.  

Division response:  The permit issuance time is minimal and handled “on the spot” in 
a manner of minutes, not hours or days. 

 
 
Audit recommendations to which the Engineering Division somewhat agrees: 
 
Recommendation XIII-2 (Community Relations/Customer Relations & Services):  
Revise the monthly citywide performance & measurement report to contain information 
on the number of survey questionnaires completed and the average score on each of the 
questions.   

Division response:  The Engineering Division already tracks this information for in-
house use.   

 
Recommendation XIII-3 (Community Relations/Customer Relations & Services):   
The Division should review the work activities of each function and select performance 
measures that can be easily administered and that relate directly to the provision of 
services. 
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Division response:  Existing performance measurements were created under the 
direction of a consultant retained to ensure value in the measurement process.  The 
Engineering Division will evaluate existing and possible new measurements to 
determine the value of revising existing or adding new measurements.  

 
Recommendation XIII-4 (Community Relations/Customer Relations & Services):  
Results of the survey responses on construction projects should be included in the 
monthly citywide performance & measurement plan and share an annual summary  
with the City Council. 

Division response:  The Engineering Division already tracks the information for in-
house use.  If the City Council finds some value in receiving this information, the 
Engineering Division can provide any desired reports.  

 
Recommendation XIV-3 (Reporting to the City Council):  The Engineering Division 
should develop a series of performance measures that communicate useful information 
to the City Council, that serve as management and analytical tools for the Engineering 
Division, and generally meet the standards in the performance measurement scheme 
described in this report.  

Division response:  Existing performance measurements were created under the 
direction of a consultant retained to ensure value in the measurement process.  The 
Division will evaluate possible changes in measurements to provide additional value 
added measurements.  If the City Council finds some value in receiving this 
information, the Engineering Division can provide any desired reports. 

 
Reporting to the City Council 
The auditors recommended that the Engineering Division provide a monthly CIP status 
report to the City Council.  The Division currently produces a monthly CIP report that is 
distributed to various other departments and divisions by email.  (See attached example 
for the month of October 2006.)  The auditors recommended that the report be 
redesigned in cooperation with the City Council so that the Division is providing the 
information that the Council needs in an easily understandable format.  The City 
Engineer would like to check with the Council to begin the process of determining the 
types and amount of information that the Council would like to receive.  For example, 
perhaps the comment column can be expanded to include a more complete project 
history and current status.  Perhaps Council Members would prefer to routinely review 
a report for projects only in his/her district with the complete report on a request basis.   
 
The City Engineer is willing to change the format, add information or make any other 
changes that would be helpful.  The Council may wish to request that the City Engineer 
work with Council staff in this endeavor.  The revisions could be an evolving process as 
the Council begins to receive and use the reports.  Does the Council wish to receive the 
CIP status reports?  Does the Council wish to receive the reports on a monthly basis or 
on some less-frequent basis?  Do Council Members prefer to receive the report by email 
or hard copy? 
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